
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY BOARD MEETING 
MAY 11, 2022 - 7:00 PM

KING WILLIAM COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
KING WILLIAM, VIRGINIA

A G E N D A
1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Review and Adoption of Meeting Agenda

4. Approval of Minutes

a. April 13, 2022 Regular Meeting Draft Minutes

b. April 23, 2022 Special Called Planning Meeting Draft Minutes

5. Treasurer's Report

6. Chairperson’s Report

7. Unfinished Business

a. Phase One Final Report from RKG - Kyle Talente, President

b. By-Laws Update - Percy C. Ashcraft, County Administrator

c. Farmer's Market Update - Percy Ashcraft, County Administrator

d. Ag Education Project - Tracy M. Porter, Sr. - Regional Program Assistant, Eastern Virginia ESU 
Small Farm Outreach Program

8. New Business

a. Appoint Business Roundtable - Percy C. Ashcraft, County Administrator

9. Public Comment Period One Opportunity of Three Minutes per Individual or Five Minutes per Group 
on Non-Public Hearing Matters

10. Next Meeting - June 8, 2022

Page 1 of 54



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY BOARD AGENDA
MAY 11, 2022
Page 2

County of King William, Virginia

11. Closed Meeting

a. Motion to Convene Closed Meeting in accordance with Section 2.2-3711 (A)(1) of the Code of
Virginia to consider a personnel matter involving the appointment of individuals to Boards and
Commissions, and in accordance with Section 2.2-3711 (A)(5) to discuss a prospective business
or industry or expansion of an existing business or industry where no previous announcement
has been made.

b. Motion to Reconvene in Open Session

c. Certification of Closed Meeting

d. Action on Closed Meeting (if necessary)

12. Adjourn or Recess

NOTES REGARDING AGENDA:

This agenda is tentative only and subject to change by the Economic Development Authority Board.

During Public Comment and any Public Hearing periods, speakers shall be provided one opportunity of three minutes per individual or five minutes 
per group. Speakers shall provide their name, district of residence, and if applicable, the group they are representing. The EDA Board may modify 

and/or set other rules governing the conduct of Public Hearings.

Detailed instructions for viewing live-streams of meetings, signing up to speak via Zoom (registration required by noon on the day of the 
meeting), and general guidelines for Public Comment & Public Hearings are available from the King William County website.

Page 2 of 54

https://www.kingwilliamcounty.us/461/Public-Comment-Public-Hearings


AGENDA ITEM 4.a.

April 13, 2022 Regular Meeting Draft Minutes

Page 3 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 13, 2022 

Page 1 of 14 

DRAFT MINUTES 
KING WILLIAM COUNTY 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  
REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 13, 2022 

 
A meeting of the King William County Economic Development Authority Board of Directors 
was held on the 13th day of April 2022, beginning at 7:00 p.m. in the Board Room of the 
County Administration Building and via Zoom. 
 
Agenda Item 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Rhoads called the meeting to order. 
 
Agenda Item 2. ROLL CALL 
 
The members were polled: 
 
Eugene L. Campbell, Jr. – Secretary/Treasurer Present 
Travis W. Longest Absent 
Jason Brown Absent 
W. Brian Hodges Present 
Kenneth A. Holderied Present 
Charles F. Piersa – Vice Chair Present 
Tiffany K. Barber Present 
Sarah Williams Present 
C. Meade Rhoads, Jr. – Chairman Present 
 
Agenda Item 3. REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF MEETING AGENDA 
 
Vice Chair Piersa made a motion to approve the Meeting Agenda as presented. Authority 
Member Hodges seconded. The Chairman called for any discussion. There being no 
discussion or opposition, the Meeting Agenda was adopted with no change. 
 
Agenda Item 4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
4.a. March 9, 2022 Joint Meeting with the Planning Commission Draft Minutes 
 
Authority Member Campbell moved to approve the minutes with one change - a correction 
to show that he was Present and arrived at 7:15pm rather than showing Absent and arriving 
at 7:15pm. Vice Chair Piersa seconded the motion with the change. The Chairman called for 
any discussion. There being no discussion or opposition, the meeting minutes for March 9, 
2022 were approved with the one change noted above. 
 
  

Page 4 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 13, 2022 

Page 2 of 14 

Agenda Item 5. PRESENTATION 
 
5.a. Virginia Economic Development Partnership - Jason El Koubi, President & CEO 
(Via Zoom) 
 
Mr. El Koubi went over economic development in the Commonwealth of Virginia and the 
services offered by the Virginia Economic Development Partnership. He also outlined their 
strategic plan and goal progress. At any given time, the VEDP is managing between 300-400 
projects. 
 
Authority Member Campbell asked if VEDP can guide the County in what needs to be done 
to be competitive. Mr. El Koubi said yes, a Local & Regional Competitiveness Initiative 
assessment can be completed which shows how one locality stacks up against the others. It 
can be done formally or informally and the VEDP can dive in and support, advise, and 
participate with the EDA. The assessment starts with what you’re trying to achieve. Mr. 
Campbell asked if the assessment was one-on-one and if it was free. Mr. El Koubi said yes to 
both. 
 
Authority Member Williams asked what the regions titled Virginia Growth Alliance and E 
Region were. Mr. El Koubi said the Virginia Growth Alliance is comprised of regional EDO’s 
and the E Region is comprised on counties in Southwest Virginia. 
 
Authority Member Holderied asked about M&T tax barriers and how you get around them. 
Mr. El Koubi said some localities lower the rate or eliminate it entirely for the first few years. 
Incentive grants from the state or locality are also used and vary by locality. 
 
Chairman Rhodes ask if VEDP works directly with EDAs for financing. Mr. El Koubi said they 
do it all the time and most require a local match. He said funding partnerships among 
localities are common and the funds flow through the locality. Chairman Rhodes asked what 
structure they use to initiate a project. Mr. El Koubi said they work with EDA-owned 
properties, private landowners, RIFFA agreements between two or more localities, and a 
variety of other mechanisms. 
 
Authority Member Hodges said a separate agency besides the EDA is not needed to buy, sell, 
or own property. 
 
Chairman Rhodes asked about an operating entity such as a co-op. Mr. El Koubi said VEDP 
does not do that. He said it might be VDACS for agriculture and forestry. 
 
Chairman Rhodes asked the next step. Percy Ashcraft, County Administrator, said they would 
discuss it at the April 23rd planning meeting and then reach back out to VEDP. 
 
Authority Member Hodges asked if there’s a certain period when grants are accepted. Mr. El 
Koubi said it is a rolling application for site characterization grants which include basic, high-

Page 5 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 13, 2022 

Page 3 of 14 

level site research and evaluation. There are application windows for site development 
grants which provide more sophisticated research and cover soft and hard costs on a higher 
dollar scale. Their goal is to get a site to a point where if a business chooses it, it’s low-risk 
and they can break ground within 12-18 months. 
 
Authority Member Hodges asked if the grants were allocated by region or throughout the 
whole state. Mr. El Koubi said it’s historically a state-wide process and they make sure there 
is strategic development across regions where there is a high potential to attract business – 
where you can get the biggest bang for the buck. He said it wasn’t until recently they started 
doing this. 
 
Mr. El Koubi said the General Assembly is considering a $150 million one-time investment 
in site development across the state. He said they then need to continue investing in it 
annually. He doesn’t know what the General Assembly will decide or the language they’ll use. 
 
Chairman Rhodes noted there is $7 million for soft costs. Mr. El Koubi said that was in the 
last grant cycle and all has been allocated. Chairman Rhodes asked if there were grants 
available for hard costs. Mr. El Koubi said yes but hard costs eat up a lot of money which isn’t 
always necessary and is cost-prohibitive. 
 
Authority Member Hodges asked if there was checklist of items that makes a site a winning 
site. Mr. El Koubi said they have that information and could discuss it in a separate meeting. 
 
5b. Middle Peninsula Alliance (MPA) - Sherry A. Spring, Director of Economic 
Development -Gloucester County (Via Zoom) 
 
Ms. Spring said she is the liaison between VEDP and the Middle Peninsula Alliance (MPA) 
and works closely with the VEDP. She passes leads from the VEDP to the localities. In King 
William County, she passes them to Mr. Ashcraft and Mr. Hudgins, the Deputy County 
Administrator. 
 
The MPA started in 2017-2018 with seven localities each contributing $5,000. She’s not sure 
what the future will be for the MPA. 
 
Chairman Rhodes asked if the EDA had an objective or target, can the MPA help or talk with 
them. Ms. Spring said she has a lot of experience and is happy to share her knowledge.  
 
She said big companies are looking for interstate access, an enterprise zone, water, sewer, 
and natural gas. She said it could cost $20,000-$30,000 per locality to hire someone to have 
a regional partnership.  
 
Authority Member Campbell asked if there were any activity going on. Ms. Spring said you 
need buildings and sites. There is an industrial park project lead from VEDP which is looking 
for 25 acres and up with utilities (water, sewer, gas) and a workforce. 

Page 6 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 13, 2022 

Page 4 of 14 

 
Authority Member Holderied asked how the dominoes fell with the shopping center on 
Route 17 in Gloucester. Ms. Spring said it happened before she joined the county. She said 
retail and service is not considered economic development as far as VEDP is concerned. Mr. 
Holderied asked if water and sewer are a deal breaker. Ms. Spring said yes, as is broadband, 
especially for home-based businesses. He asked if it’s a case of build it and they will come. 
Ms. Spring said the Route 17 shopping center developer won’t build anything unless he has 
a commitment from a retailer.  
 
Authority Member Hodges asked if more industrial parks are needed. He asked how many 
are in the Middle Peninsula region and what’s their population. He said King William has two 
and they’re not doing well. He asked the utility of industrial parks in today’s economy. Ms. 
Spring said she’d send an email to the MPA partners and ask for that information.  
 
Chairman Rhodes said finished sites ready to go are what people are looking for. Authority 
Member Hodges said West Point’s industrial park has that and it’s not full. Authority Member 
Piersa said there’s no structure there. Ms. Spring said she’d ask them the capacity, site size, 
and square footage of buildings they have available. She said buildings are important and 
noted that they built one and it took three years to find someone interested in it.  
 
c. Go Virginia Region 6 Presentation – Chip Boyles, Executive Director & Ian Ginger, 
Program Director 
 
Mr. Boyles said King William County is part of Region 6 – the Mary Ball Washington Region. 
The Virginia Initiative for Growth & Opportunity in Each Region was created state-wide in 
2016. Go Virginia works via private-public partnerships and offers different grant 
opportunities. He said they will come and meet with the County to discuss ways they can 
help. Go Virginia staff assists with completing grant applications and with DHCD on their 
decisions. He said they have not been spending all the money allocated to this region.  
 
Authority Member Campbell asked if there were any projects in our area. Mr. Boyles said 
most interest has been in the Fredericksburg area. Mr. Campbell asked the grant turnaround 
time. Mr. Boyles said it’s a rolling application, but it takes time to get in front of the state 
board, which meets quarterly. From application to reimbursement is typically six months. 
The grants are given on a reimbursement basis. 
 
Chairman Rhodes asked the size of grants available. Mr. Boyles said from $100,000 to $2 
million. 
 
Authority Member Hodges said Go Virginia worked within the County on Pamunkey Net and 
MPA Site Characterization. 
 

Page 7 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 13, 2022 

Page 5 of 14 

Authority Member Holderied said there are many grants listed on the Go Virginia website 
and asked what open meant. Mr. Boyles said open means they are accepting applications for 
that grant.  
 
Chairman Rhodes asked how they define localities for grants requiring multi-locality 
participation. Mr. Boyles said towns, counties, or cities; not a town and the county it’s in.  
 
d. Hampton Roads Sanitation District (HRSD) - John Dano & Kendall Korey (Via Zoom) 
 
Mr. Dano said HRSD exists to protect public health and water. They operate two plants in 
King William County – West Point (600,000 gallons/day) and Central Garage (100,000 
gallons/day). In 2021, West Point used 500,000 gallons. Central Garage is maxed out. They 
are in the process of expanding to be able to treat 300,000 gallons/day in Central Garage. It 
will cost $29 million. The design should be complete this spring and the plant should be 
complete in March 2025. He said they are experiencing supply chain impacts and the plant 
must be complete before any hook ups. 
 
Authority Member Hodges asked how many households/users can be serviced. Mr. Dano 
said they estimate 100 gallons per user per day. 
 
Authority Member Holderied asked about running lines down Route 360. Mr. Dano said they 
just need capacity. Mr. Hudgins said they upped to 300,000 to include Commerce Park.  
 
Mr. Dano said the $29 million cost was for the treatment plant only, not for running the lines. 
 
Agenda Item 6. TREASURER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Hudgins said $15,000 had been spent for the RKG study. The County has paid two of 
three invoices. A balance of $7,500 will be due once the final product report is received.  

Agenda Item 7. CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT 
 
There was no Chairperson’s Report presented. 
 
Agenda Item 8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
8.a. Fauquier Education Farm Visit Update – Meade Rhoads, Chairman 
 
Chairman Rhoads asked if the members who visited the farm could visualize one here. 
Authority Member Campbell said yes, maybe through FFA where there’s labor nearby and it 
would be associated with the schools. Mr. Campbell showed some photos he took at the farm. 
 

Page 8 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 13, 2022 

Page 6 of 14 

Vice Chair Piersa said the EDA could help with the kids at the school greenhouse as a way to 
give back to the community. Authority Member Williams said her child went through the ag 
class and felt it was helpful. She said kids don’t see a lot of small ag.  
 
Authority Member Campbell said it might help some kids choose agriculture as a career.  
 
Chairman Rhodes said it could be a cluster scale-up and be expanded in the future. 
 
Authority Member Holderied asked the mechanics of it and who owned the land. 
 
Authority Member Campbell said the farm was a non-profit and he wasn’t sure where the 
land came from, possibly the state.  
 
Vice Chair Piersa said there’s enough land for a greenhouse at the school. 
 
Chairman Rhodes asked about a bigger vision opportunity such as meat processing. Vice 
Chair Piersa said not at the school. 
 
Authority Member Holderied asked if they seek out landowners then create a non-profit 
through the EDA. Chairman Rhodes said it needs to be achievable.  
 
Vice Chair Piersa said he was asked if there was anything involved in starting a Christmas 
tree farm. Mr. Ashcraft said there would have to be proper zoning and the person should 
speak with Sherry Graham, Director of Planning. Authority Member Williams said there used 
to be one in King & Queen, but they ran out of trees.  
 
Authority Member Hodges asked the size of the school’s FFA program. Vice Chair Piersa said 
it would start growing if they had a greenhouse. Mr. Hodges said there’s always a maximum 
concern; if there’s a need, is the school willing to take it on. Vice Chair Piersa said he will find 
out. 
 
Chairman Rhodes said there are no bad ideas and not to shut anything down. He said to do a 
little dreaming and bring ideas to the upcoming planning retreat.  
 
8b. RKG Discussion - Percy Ashcraft, County Administrator 
 
Mr. Ashcraft said he talked with RKG about moving to Phase Two and told them he wanted 
to see the final product from Phase One before making a commitment. He said there is money 
in the budget for Phase Two. 
 
Chairman Rhodes said they engaged RKG to bring focus and get the EDA started. 
 
  

Page 9 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 13, 2022 

Page 7 of 14 

Agenda Item 9. NEW BUSINESS 
 
a. Discussion of Planning Retreat - Percy Ashcraft, County Administrator 
 
Mr. Ashcraft asked the members to review the draft agenda and make suggestions for other 
topics of discussion. Ideas offered were to add a 24-hour vet and cannery to the Action 
Strategies agenda item. 
 
b. Survey Completion - Percy Ashcraft, County Administrator 
 
Mr. Ashcraft asked the members to complete the survey if they haven’t already and gave a 
brief overview of responses so far (Attachment A). He said Liz Povar with VEDA said King 
William County has more potential today than any other locality in the Middle Peninsula. 
 
Chairman Rhodes said the EDA is fortunate to have Mr. Ashcraft and thanked him. 
 
Agenda Item 10. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
There was no one present. 
 
Agenda Item 11. NEXT MEETING – April 13, 2022 and May 11, 2022 
 
A Special Called Planning Meeting will take place on Saturday, April 13, 2022, from 9am-1pm 
in the Administration Building Board Room. The next regular meeting will be held on 
Wednesday, May 11, 2022. 
 
Agenda Item 12. ADJOURN OR RECESS 
 
Authority Member Hodges made a motion to adjourn to April 23, 2022 at 9am. Motion was 
seconded by Vice Chair Piersa. There being no discussion and no opposition, the meeting was 
adjourned. 
 
 
COPY TESTE: 
 
 
 
 
    
C. Meade Rhoads, Jr.  Christine H. Branch 
Chairman Deputy Clerk 
 

Page 10 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT A 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 13, 2022 

Page 8 of 14 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

Page 11 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT A 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 13, 2022 

Page 9 of 14 

Page 12 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT A 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 13, 2022 

Page 10 of 14 

Page 13 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT A 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 13, 2022 

Page 11 of 14 

Page 14 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT A 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 13, 2022 

Page 12 of 14 

Page 15 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT A 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 13, 2022 

Page 13 of 14 

Page 16 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT A 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 13, 2022 

Page 14 of 14 

 

 

Page 17 of 54



AGENDA ITEM 4.b.

April 23, 2022 Special Called Planning Meeting Draft Minutes

Page 18 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 23, 2022 

Page 1 of 15 

DRAFT MINUTES 
KING WILLIAM COUNTY 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
SPECIAL CALLED PLANNING MEETING OF APRIL 23, 2022 

 
A special called planning meeting of the King William County Economic Development 
Authority Board of Directors was held on the 23rd day of April 2022, beginning at 9:00 a.m. 
in the Board Room of the County Administration Building and via Zoom. 
 
Agenda Item 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Rhoads called the meeting to order. 
 
Agenda Item 2. ROLL CALL 
 
The members were polled: 
 
Eugene L. Campbell, Jr. – Secretary/Treasurer Present 
Travis W. Longest Absent 
Jason Brown Present 
W. Brian Hodges Present 
Kenneth A. Holderied Present 
Charles F. Piersa – Vice Chair Present 
Tiffany K. Barber Present 
Sarah Williams Present 
C. Meade Rhoads, Jr. – Chairman Present 
 
Agenda Item 3. REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF MEETING AGENDA 
 
Authority Member Brown made a motion to approve the Meeting Agenda as presented. Vice 
Chair Piersa seconded. The Chairman called for any discussion. There being no discussion or 
opposition, the Meeting Agenda was adopted with no change. 
 
Chairman Rhodes turned the meeting over to County Administrator, Percy Ashcraft. 
 
Agenda Item 4. BY-LAWS AMENDMENT – ESTABLISHING EDA PURPOSE 
 
Mr. Ashcraft said the EDA by-laws required some minor amendments. He also noted the lack 
of a purpose statement.  
 
Section 1.1 Name –change to reflect the name “Economic Development Authority” as 
established in King William County Code §22-32. 
 

Page 19 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 23, 2022 

Page 2 of 15 

Section 1.2 Purpose – Mr. Ashcraft provided a proposed purpose statement. Authority 
Member Hodges said a Vision & Mission Statement was presented to the Board of 
Supervisors in 2016-2017 which could be incorporated into the statement. Authority 
Member Brown suggested the purpose not be in the by-laws but in a separate document in 
order not to limit the Board or require future amendment. (The Vision & Mission Statement 
document was located and sent to the Board on 04/25/2022 via email.) 
 
Section 2.4 Powers – change language to more clearly reflect state code reference. 
 
Section 3.1 Officers – add additional language directly from state code. 
 
Section 4.1 Annual Meeting – correct location to Board Room and city to King William. 
 
Section 4.2 Regular Meeting – states regular meetings are held on the second Wednesday 
bimonthly (January, March, May, July, September, November). Authority Member Brown 
said they used to hold Work Sessions on the alternating months and noted what’s stated in 
the by-laws is a minimum. Authority Member Hodges said previous Boards felt this gave 
them more flexibility. Chairman Rhoads said they would discuss this further in a future 
meeting. Also correct location to Board Room and city to King William. 
 
Section 4.7 Agenda and Meeting Format – amend to add Roll Call, Review and Adoption of 
Meeting Agenda, Presentations, Next Meeting Date, and Adjourn or Recess which is the 
format currently followed. 

Section 4.9 Electronic Participation – delete entire existing section and replace with state 
code §2.2-3708.2 as amended March 31, 2021 plus the EDA’s written policy for the 
approval process which must be adopted before inclusion in the by-laws. 

Section 4.10 Attendance – add additional language from state code. 

Section 5.2 Special Committees – add “consisting of no more than any two (2) of the 
directors”.  

Section 8.1 Amendments – update to make language clearer. 

Section 9.1 Adoption – update language and date of adoption. 

Section 9.2 Effective Date – update language, date, and name of Authority. 

Section 9.3 Amendment – delete due to changes above. 

Authority Member Campbell asked about the ex-officio members referenced in Section 
2.1.1 which are to be representatives of the three Native American tribes within the 
County. He asked if they were interested in being part of the EDA. Authority Member 
Hodges said the purpose of making these positions ex-officio was to avoid 
overrepresentation in the districts. He said in the past the Pamunkey tribe was not very 

Page 20 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 23, 2022 

Page 3 of 15 

interested, and the Upper Mattaponi tribe was interested. He suggested the invitation be 
extended again. Mr. Ashcraft said an official letter from the Authority could be sent to the 
tribes to invite them to participate. The consensus of the Board was that a letter should be 
sent. Vice Chair Piersa noted the Lower Mattaponi tribe may not be interested at this time 
due to other matters within the tribe. Kyle Talente, President & CEO of RKG Associates, said 
ex-officio members are provided a seat based on special status and the by-laws must 
specify whether those members will be voting or non-voting. The EDA by-laws state they 
are non-voting. 

Deputy Clerk, Christine Branch, addressed FOIA issues with forming subcommittees of the 
EDA. The Virginia Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) states that meetings of public bodies 
must be open which means they must be advertised and open to the public (Code of 
Virginia §2.2-3707). Per the FOIA Council of Virginia, “a subcommittee comprised of two 
members is still a subcommittee subject to FOIA. If there are two or three members on a 
committee or subcommittee, then a quorum would be two members, and any time two 
members get together to discuss committee or subcommittee business, it would be 
considered a ‘meeting’ subject to FOIA (i.e., it must be noticed & open to the public).” 
According to the Code of Virginia §2.2-3707H any subcommittee appointed by the Board of 
Supervisors is exempt from having to keep minutes of their meetings. This does not, 
however, exempt the meeting from being open. The suggestion was made to hold Closed 
Meetings. A Closed Meeting can only be held as part of an Open Meeting. It would still have 
to be advertised and open to the public, even though the public would sit and wait while 
the EDA Board went into Closed Session. Chairman Rhoads asked Ms. Branch to send the 
Code references to the Board. (This was done on 04/25/2022 via email.)  

Authority Members Campbell and Hodges asked about the quorum being only four 
members even though the EDA Board has grown to nine members. Ms. Branch said this is 
taken directly from the Code of Virginia §15.2-4904E which specifies four members 
constitute a quorum, regardless of the size of the Board. 

Agenda Item 5. DEVELOP INTERNAL GOALS 
 
5.a. Meetings 
 
This topic was briefly covered during the by-laws discussion and will be discussed further at 
a future meeting. 
 
5.b. Work Groups 
 
This topic was also covered during the by-laws discussion. In order to maintain compliance 
with FOIA rules, Work Groups will consist of one EDA Board member with staff support. 
 
  

Page 21 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 23, 2022 

Page 4 of 15 

5c. Full or Part-Time Staff 
 
Mr. Ashcraft said this is not to be decided today but is something to think about. 
 
Authority Member Hodges said there would need to be some sort of performance 
measurement to make sure they’d be getting bang for the buck.  
 
Mr. Ashcraft said the person would be an employee of the EDA unless the County chose to 
hire a Director of Economic Development. 
 
Authority Member Holderied said it could be a split position in the Planning Department – 
code enforcement and economic development. Mr. Ashcraft said contractors are currently 
expressing frustration that the County is not quick enough or the process is cumbersome. 
 
Mr. Ashcraft said the Board needs to think about whether they need a part-time or full-time 
person or is current staff support sufficient. He said the Board of Supervisors has expressed 
a desire to hear the EDA Board’s ideas and wants them to be active and successful.  
 
Mr. Talente said RKG’s Phase Two would help the Board determine if a dedicated staff person 
is even needed. If so, he said the staff person would need to be pro-business and shouldn’t 
be the rules-enforcer person. 
 
Authority Member Brown said it’s important to think if the person should be an employee of 
the EDA or the County. Mr. Ashcraft said County staff would still continue to be involved 
either way.  
 
Chairman Rhoads asked Mr. Ashcraft to keep the Board moving forward on the agenda. 
 
Authority Member Hodges asked about the EDA’s budget. Mr. Hudgins said they have the 
funds to do RKG’s proposed Phase Two work. Mr. Hodges asked if the EDA had money in 
capital improvements. Mr. Hudgins said there is $800,000 for capital which would need to 
be proposed from this Authority and approved by the Board of Supervisors. He said this 
money is not for the EDA only. Mr. Ashcraft said his way of doing things is that everything 
goes through the EDA and then to the Board of Supervisors. 
 
Authority Member Campbell asked if the $800,000 was left over from the $2 million. Mr. 
Hudgins said 4-6 years ago the County set aside $2 million for economic development, 
outside of the budget. This is the amount remaining.  
 
Authority Member Brown said the EDA should identify significant initiatives, be conscious 
of the funds at their disposal, and possibly take a fee for facilitating the deal. 
 

Page 22 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 23, 2022 

Page 5 of 15 

Authority Member Hodges said his concern with hiring someone is the EDA has nothing of 
their own. They are at the mercy of the County. He also said they cannot encumber future 
boards with the expense of supporting a staff person.  
 
Authority Member Campbell said the County used to have two Economic Development 
Consultants. Authority Member Hodges said we could possibly share with West Point, Mr. 
Kelly; it would benefit both parties.  
 
5.d. Field Trips 
 
This topic was briefly covered during the other discussions. 
 
5.e. Buying & Selling Property 
 
Mr. Ashcraft said inventory in the County is slim. There may be an opportunity in Commerce 
Park or they could look to buy inexpensive land. 
 
Authority Member Hodges asked if staff looked at the Newport News properties. Mr. Hudgins 
said they’ve sold some but not all. Mr. Ashcraft said this would be a Closed Meeting topic for 
a future meeting if there was interest. 
 
Agenda Item 6. STRENGTHS AND WEAKNESSES FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN 
KING WILLIAM COUNTY 
 
Mr. Ashcraft asked Board Members to make a list of what they felt were the County’s 
strengths and weaknesses. 

Strengths 

• Location 
o 30 minutes from 64, 95, and 295; central 
o Golden Triangle (DC, Richmond, Newport News/Virginia Beach) 

• Compared to other areas, we have more land 
• Growing population 
• Opportunity as an emerging economy – citizen have needs and there is no 

competition 
• Natural resources 

o River access 
o State parks 

• Unique opportunities as a portal to the Northern Neck 
• Route 360 
• Broadband/gas on 360 and in West Point 
• Ample road frontage land 

Page 23 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 23, 2022 

Page 6 of 15 

• Broadband expansion underway 
• Affluent residents (per capita income) 
• Rural atmosphere 
• Decent schools – safe, good graduation rates (this can be subjective). Mr. Ashcraft 

noted there are more offerings the schools would like but are limited by budget. 
• Timber, gravel, fuller’s earth (clay), agriculture 

o And the knowledge base 
• Proximity to regional event parks 
• Water on three sides 
• Hunting/fishing 
• Native American Tribes – two federally recognized reservations.  

o Brings culture, history, diversity, contributions such as medical center 
• Historic resources and sites 
• Rail 
• Grit 
• Grainery – accessible by rail and water  
• Regional airport 

Weaknesses 

• Limited access to water/sewer/broadband 
• Tax rates 
• Clear vision – fight between rural and economic development 
• No pad/building-ready sites 
• No infrastructure in commerce parks 
• Nothing large available 
• Lack of large-scale, local, community developers (most from outside King William) 
• Not open-minded 
• Poor appearance of gateways 

o Grass not cut 
o Trash on roadsides 
o Roads 

• Limited river access 
o Small, narrow entrances 
o Channel not marked 
o Dike signage gone 

• Workforce 
o Lack of white-collar workers 
o Large percentage commute elsewhere to work 

• No interstate 
• Size – 10 miles wide, 60 miles long 

Page 24 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 23, 2022 

Page 7 of 15 

• No brand identity 
• 28% of the population is overleveraged 
• Limited number of businesses already here 
• Not enough miles between Mechanicsville and Tappahannock 
• Lack of exposure – we’re not people’s first thought 

Mr. Ashcraft said this is a good exercise to undertake periodically. 

Agenda Item 7. REVIEW OF BUSINESS DATA 
 
7.a. Number of Business Licenses 
 
Mr. Hudgins showed a chart of FY2021 Business Revenues and Licenses (Attachment A). 
 
Authority Member Brown asked what was comprised in Repairs, Business, and Personal. Mr. 
Hudgins said it is a catch-all category. Mr. Brown asked if there was a breakout for home 
businesses. Mr. Hudgins said no. Mr. Brown asked if these were annual figures. Mr. Hudgins 
said yes.  
 
Chairman Rhoads asked what was considered a peddler. Mr. Hudgins said fireworks stands. 
It used to contain food trucks but they are now included elsewhere. 
 
Authority Member Hodges asked the difference in the number of licenses between 2020 and 
2021. Mr. Hudgins said it has increased. 
 
Authority Member Holderied asked if this included West Point. Mr. Hudgins said the 
revenues do. West Point and Nestle are not included in the number of business licenses. 
Manufacturing was not in there as far as they could find in the data. Farms are only included 
if they sell other people’s products. The retail category includes restaurants, Food Lion, etc. 
 
Vice Chair Piersa asked if the mill and Southern States were included in retail. Mr. Hudgins 
said they report revenues in the different categories which are appropriate to what they are 
selling.  
 
Authority Member Campbell noted there is $½ billion in business in the County each year. 
 
Authority Member Hodges asked if they could get a list of businesses in each category. Mr. 
Hudgins said yes.  
 
Authority Member Brown said he’d like to compare the percentages to similar counties.  
 
Authority Member Brown asked about growth trends. Mr. Ashcraft said home occupations 
are growing. Authority Member Hodges asked if there were any regulatory documents in the 
County that restrict the size of home-based businesses. Mr. Hudgins said there are zoning 

Page 25 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 23, 2022 

Page 8 of 15 

conditions such as the maximum amount of space in the home, traffic to the business, 
maximum number of employees, etc. Authority Member Williams asked if the restrictions 
apply to both residential and agricultural zoned properties. The details are contained in the 
County’s Zoning Ordinance. Mr. Hodges said he’d like to see how much home businesses in 
the County grew.  
 
Mr. Ashcraft asked the Board members to look at the figures and consider whether the 
County is balanced. 
 
7.b. Top Tax Revenue Generating Properties 
 
Mr. Hudgins gave a list of the top 10 tax revenue generating properties in the County and 
showed their locations on the GIS map. 
 

1. Rock 10 
2. Nestle 
3. Central Garage Shopping center 
4. King William Place 
5. Bailey Living Trust  
6. Chericoke 
7. West Point Square, LLC 
8. Old Town LLC 
9. Grainery 
10. Riverside Convalescent Center 

 
Authority Member Hodges asked to see the total of the top ten compared to the rest of the 
properties in the County. 
 
Mr. Hudgins said the improvements on the above properties make the values high. 
 
Agenda Item 8. REVIEW OF MAPS 
 
8.a. Business & Industrial 
 
Mr. Hudgins showed the current Future Land Use (FLU) map (Attachment B). 
 
Authority Member Hodges asked if there was a light industrial category. Mr. Hudgins said 
they may redefine it in the Zoning Ordinance, not in the FLU map. 
 
Authority Member Campbell asked about Tribal Lands and the rules governing them. 
Authority Member Hodges said if the land is set up to be part of a federally recognized 
reservation, the Tribe can do whatever they like with it. He said he believes the process takes 
ten years. Mr. Hudgins said the spirit of the County’s relationship with the Tribes is to work 
together to solve any issues that might arise.  

Page 26 of 54

https://kingwilliamcountygis.timmons.com/#/


 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 23, 2022 

Page 9 of 15 

 
Authority Member Holderied asked how a meat processing plant would get through zoning. 
Mr. Hudgins said by following the same process as everyone else. Authority Member 
Williams said it also depends on the size and whether it’s a Virginia-owned business. 
 
8.b. Public Utilities 
 
Mr. Hudgins said developers apply to Hampton Roads Sanitation District (HRSD) to expand 
their service area. HRSD then makes sure the County is on board for development in that 
area. The existing treatment plant in the County will be tripling its capacity from 100,000 
gallons/day to 300,000 gallons/day. HRSD provides the capacity and the developer or 
County pays for running the lines.  
 
Authority Member Hodges asked the capacity remaining on water. Mr. Hudgins said it 
depends on the community. The County projects 2025 which is why a new tower project is 
starting now. Mr. Hodges asked about bringing the water line to the other side of Route 360. 
Mr. Hudgins said they are detailing options now. He said it does go to Commerce Park. 
 
Mr. Hudgins said Nestle has their own water system which consists of a well, pump for fire, 
and treated effluent. Treated effluent water could also be an option for other industry in the 
County. He said DEQ doesn’t want industry drawing potable water.  
 
Chairman Rhoads asked if land being refilled by Nestle can be redeveloped. Mr. Hudgins said 
the land is not owned by Nestle; they lease from the owner. 
 
Chairman Rhoads said it should be a priority to get water on the east side of 360. Mr. Hudgins 
said east of Kennington is in the 10-15 year Master Utility Plan approved by the Board of 
Supervisors. 
 
Mr. Hudgins said DEQ monitors all the wells and aquafers. Hanover is using a lot of the water 
in the aquafer now. DEQ monitors pressure and danger zones closer to Hanover. 
 
8.c. VEDP Website 
 
The VEDP website shows marketable spots in the state. In King William, it lists the Sikes 
Property in West Point, Fontainebleau Industrial Park, Newcomb Property, Simons Property, 
Commerce Park, and West Point Industrial Park. It’s up to the County to keep the listings up 
to date. 
 
Authority Member Hodges said the site lists Verizon fiber/broadband as an available utility. 
Mr. Hudgins said he will update it to show Breezeline. 
 
Authority Member Williams asked how King William compares. Mr. Ashcraft said within the 
Middle Peninsula, we’re good. As compared to our other neighbors, we have less available. 

Page 27 of 54

https://sites.vedp.org/kingwilliam


 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 23, 2022 

Page 10 of 15 

 
Authority Member Holderied asked why the strip mall near Dollar General is not on the list. 
Mr. Hudgins said they probably did not ask for it to be on there. Authority Member Hodges 
said at one time, we were limited by VEDP as to how many we could list and so it was decided 
to focus on the best four or five. 
 
Chairman Rhoads noted one criticism by RKG was not having prices listed. Authority 
Member Brown added our lack of a web presence was another criticism. Authority Member 
Holderied suggested an action item be to get all the available sites along 360 listed on the 
VEDP site. Authority Member Hodges asked why the last corner lot available at Routes 360 
& 30 is not listed. Mr. Hudgins said he wasn’t sure. Mr. Ashcraft said people may be trying to 
gauge HRSDs timing before listing properties. 
 
Authority Member Holderied asked if we can create our own commercial property website. 
Mr. Ashcraft said yes. Chairman Rhoads said there is some risk involved with marketing 
other people’s property. Authority Member Hodges said it has to be kept current. 
 
Vice Chair Piersa noted that land prices are going up. Authority Member Hodges asked if 
there were any properties in the EDA’s price range that could be purchased and made pad-
ready to attract business.  
 
Agenda Item 9. DEVELOP ACTION STRATEGIES 
 
9.a. Ag-Education Project 
 
Chairman Rhoads asked if the Fauquier farm offers franchises. Authority Member Brown 
said he believed the partnership would be with the Extension Office. He is not sure he’d want 
the EDA to stand up their own non-profit. Chairman Rhoads asked if this was something you 
could start small and add pieces on. Mr. Brown said it would be an economic benefit to the 
County and would help King William farmers grow and learn. 
 
Authority Member Williams suggested a place that leases land and gives access to equipment 
for emerging farmers. Authority Member Brown said a smaller educational piece could also 
be added. Authority Member Campbell said it should be started with the school and grown 
from there.  
 
9.b. Processing Plant 
 
This topic was discussed during other agenda matters throughout the meeting. 
 
9.c. Farmer’s Market 
 
Ms. Williams suggested putting a Farmer’s Market on the same property as the ag-education 
greenhouse. Chairman Rhoads said you had to look at the traffic. Vice Chair Piersa suggested 

Page 28 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 23, 2022 

Page 11 of 15 

putting a Farmer’s Market on 360 west of 30 to catch people heading to the river. Authority 
Member Barber said signage could be created to draw people to the high school parking lot.  
 
Authority Member Hodges said the American Legion property will be going up for auction 
by the state. Chairman Rhodes said it needs to be by the kitty litter plant. Mr. Hodges said it 
has to be on 360. He said the American Legion property is on 360, has 3.5 acres, and well and 
septic. The building could be torn down and a pavilion could be constructed.  
 
Authority Member Holderied asked if the County received any money back from West Point 
on their pavilion project. Mr. Hudgins said no.  
 
Authority Member Williams said a Farmer’s Market requires a staff. Authority Member 
Brown said he thinks the Williamsburg model is the one to follow. 
 
Mr. Ashcraft said he had originally proposed $250,000 in capital for a Farmer’s Market and 
community feedback was not favorable. He has reduced it to $10,000 in the proposed capital 
improvement plan. He said in Prince George, they used a tent donated by the Farm Bureau 
and grew from there. It became a community hub and included crafts, food trucks, farmers, 
etc. The Farmer’s Market became a community event. A current staff member was given a 
stipend to manage it.  
 
Authority Member Holderied asked if the high school parking lot was available. Mr. Hudgins 
said we would have to ask them.  
 
Authority Member Williams said a pilot market is a good idea and requires no infrastructure. 
Authority Member Hodges said FFA and other groups need volunteer hours and could help 
run the market. It could be a partnership where the EDA helps the school get a greenhouse 
and they can sell their products at the Farmer’s Market. Vice Chair Piersa said placing the 
greenhouse at the school has already been approved. Authority Member Barber said she 
spoke with Goochland about the costs associated with a greenhouse. Their FFA and ag 
students use it. She said King William has 40-50 kids in FFA and this would be a huge asset. 
Ms. Williams said there may be federal and state funding available. Mr. Ashcraft said the local 
Extension Office and 4-H club might help as well. Vice Chair Piersa said he spoke with the 
FFA teacher, Mr. Hill, and he’s excited about the prospect. This would also allow younger kids 
to get involved.  
 
Vice Chair Piersa asked when the American Legion property was being auctioned. Authority 
Member Hodges said he didn’t know. Authority Member Barber said a business partner 
could be found to donate signage. Mr. Hodges said Tractor Supply might donate it since it 
would bring traffic their way. 
 
Authority Member Holderied asked if there were any plans for the old mobile home sales 
place on 360. It is 14 acres and listed at $1 million.  
 

Page 29 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 23, 2022 

Page 12 of 15 

Authority Member Williams asked if anyone had heard of a processing plant coming to 
Tappahannock. She said a farmer’s survey went out last year. No one had heard about it. Ms. 
Williams said she would investigate further.  
 
Authority Member Holderied said the greenhouse at the high school and Farmer’s Market at 
the high school could be done this year. He asked how the market made money. Mr. Ashcraft 
said it’s not intended to. Authority Member Hodges asked if you had to have a business 
license or liability certificate to sell at the market. Authority Member Williams said it 
depends on the market rules.  
 
Authority Member Brown said there is a USDA Farmer’s Market grant for up to $250,000. He 
said there didn’t seem to be a lot of startup costs.  
 
Authority Member Hodges asked about using the grounds around the Historical Courthouse 
as a venue for weddings and other events. Authority Member Campbell said the Historical 
Society is concerned about possible damage of irreplaceable structures. Mr. Hodges said we 
should have a map of the County which shows tourist spots, photography spots, etc. He said 
you don’t have to spend money to get people to drive through. 
 
Authority Member Williams said farmers have already booked the markets they’re planning 
to participate in for the year and suggested holding it on a Friday or perhaps in the fall.  
 
Chairman Rhoads said there are a lot of things this could expand into which could possibly 
make money for the County such as canning, kitchen, cold storage, etc. He agrees with 
holding a pilot market at the high school. Authority Member Brown said it’s a low-intensity 
effort. Authority Member Williams said you need a vegetable vendor, baker, meat vendor, 
craft vendor, and ready-to-eat food vendor (food truck). She knows who to recruit.  
 
9.d. Commerce Park Participation 
 
This topic was held over for another meeting due to time constraints. 
 
9.e. Appoint Business Roundtable 
 
This topic was held over for another meeting due to time constraints. 
 
9.f. Phase 2 Recommendations from RKG 
 
Mr. Talente said they are editing the final report and he will come to the May meeting. He 
said Phase Two would have action steps. 
 
9.g. Host Business Fair 
 
This topic was held over for another meeting due to time constraints. 

Page 30 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 23, 2022 

Page 13 of 15 

 
9.h. Analyze Need for Development of an Industrial Park 
 
This topic was held over for another meeting due to time constraints. 
 
Agenda Item 10. OTHER MATTERS 
 
Action Items: 
 
Authority Member Williams will be the EDA Advisor for the Farmer’s Market and work with 
County staff on the details. 
 
Mr. Ashcraft will get information requested during the meeting out to the Board this week. 
 
Authority Member Holderied said having a property list with owners and values and creating 
a website should be an action item. Mr. Ashcraft asked Mr. Holderied if he would be the EDA 
Advisor for this. Authority Member Brown said Mr. Holderied would just have to get the 
information, staff would make the other stuff happen. Mr. Ashcraft said some issues may 
have to be discussed in Closed Meeting. Mr. Holderied will work towards collecting 
information as his time and opportunity allow. 
 
Agenda Item 11. NEXT MEETING – May 11, 2022 
 
The next regular meeting will be held on Wednesday, May 11, 2022. 
 
Agenda Item 12. TENTATIVE CLOSED MEETING (if necessary) 
 
A Closed Meeting was not necessary. 
 
Agenda Item 12. ADJOURN  
 
By unanimous decision, the meeting was adjourned at 1:10pm. 
 
 
COPY TESTE: 
 
 
 
 
    
C. Meade Rhoads, Jr.  Christine H. Branch 
Chairman Deputy Clerk 
 

Page 31 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT A 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 23, 2022 

Page 14 of 15 

Attachment A 

 

 

 

 

Page 32 of 54



 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ATTACHMENT B 

DRAFT Minutes of the King William County Economic Development Authority 
Meeting of April 23, 2022 

Page 15 of 15 

Attachment B 

 

Page 33 of 54



AGENDA ITEM 7.b.

By-Laws Update - Percy C. Ashcraft, County Administrator

Page 34 of 54



1 

Economic Development Authority 

BY-LAWS 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS – April 23, 2022 

Article I Purpose and Scope 

Section 1.1. Name. The political subdivision created by an ordinance passed by the King William.    County Board 

of Supervisors on February 22, 1972, shall be named the Industrial Development Authority of King William 

County ("the Authority"). 

Section 1.1. Name. The King William County Board of Supervisors created a political subdivision of the 

commonwealth by ordinance on February 22, 1972, with such public and corporate powers as are set forth in the 

Industrial Development and Revenue Bond Act, constituting Code of Virginia, § 15.2-4900 et seq. Per King William 

County Code Sec. 22-32, the name of the political subdivision shall be the Economic Development Authority of 

King William County ("the Authority" or “EDA”).  

Section 1.2. Purpose. The purpose of creating the Authority is so that such Authority may acquire, own, 

lease, and dispose of properties to fulfill the Authority’s purpose. to the end that such Authority may be able to 

promote industry and develop trade by inducing manufacturing, industrial, governmental and commercial 

enterprises to locate in or remain in the Commonwealth, and further the use of its agricultural products and 

natural resources.  The purpose of the Authority is to (1) promote economic development; (2) relieve conditions of 

unemployment and encourage new job positions in the County; (3) encourage the location of new industry, 

commerce, and business for a balanced economy in the County; (4) assist in the retention of existing business and 

industry in the County and increase their commerce; (5) encourage the retention, location, expansion, and new 

development of businesses owned by minorities, women, veterans, and persons with disabilities in the County; and 

(6) generally promote the economic health, welfare, and quality of life of the residents of the County and further the 

use of its agricultural products and natural resources; working in partnership with all County Boards, Committees, 

and Commissions including the Board of Supervisors and the Planning Commission. 

Section 1.3. Compliance with Applicable Laws. The Economic Development Authority of King William 

County shall observe and comply with all local, state, and federal laws, which apply to the Authority, and shall 

conform to requirements of the Industrial Development and Revenue Bond Act ("the Act") contained in 

Chapter 49, Title 15.2, Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended. 

Article II Directors 

Section 2.1. Board of Directors. The Authority shall be governed by a Board of Directors (“the Board” 

or “the Directors”) of nine (9) directors appointed by the King William County Board of Supervisors. The 

nine (9) directors shall initially be appointed for terms of 1, 2, 3, and 4 years; two (2) being appointed for 

one (1)-year terms, two being appointed for two (2)-year terms, two (2) being appointed for three (3)-year 

terms, and three (3) being appointed to four (4)-year terms. Subsequent appointments shall be for terms 

Page 35 of 54



2 

of four (4) years. Each director shall, before entering upon the duties of office, take and subscribe the 

oath prescribed by Section 49-1 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended. No director shall be an 

officer or employee of King William County.  

Section 2.1.1. EDA Ex-Officio Members. The authority shall allow up to three ex-officio members to the 

Authority. These ex-officios shall be members of the Native American tribes within King William County. 

The ex-officios shall be allowed to participate on the EDA and any subcommittee of the EDA, but shall 

not have any voting privileges for the EDA. Each ex-officio shall, before entering upon the duties of the 

position, take and subscribe the oath prescribed by Section 49-1 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as 

amended. No ex-officio shall be an officer or employee of King William County.  

Section 2.2. Vacancies. If vacancies shall occur in the Board of Directors of the Authority the Board of Supervisors 

shall appoint new directors to fill the vacancies for the unexpired term of said offices. 

Section 2.3. Salaries. The directors shall receive no salary. However; at the discretion of the Board of 

Supervisors, directors may be paid such amounts as are necessary to cover the cost of attendance at 

meetings, mileage, and other such Authority-related expenses and costs. This may be paid at a rate 

determined by the Board of Supervisors. 

Section 2.4. Powers. The Board of Directors shall have all the powers enumerated in Title 15.2, Subtitle IV, 

Chapter 49 Title 15.2-4900 of the, Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, known as the Industrial Development 

and Revenue Bond Act, and wherever a provision of the bylaws shall be in conflict with the Act, the provisions 

of the Act shall prevail. 

Section 2.5. Liability. Neither the directors of the Authority nor any person executing any bonds issued by the 

Authority shall be liable personally by reason of the issuance thereof. 

Article Ill Officers 

Section 3.1. Officers. The Board of Directors shall elect from its membership a Chairperson and a Vice-

Chairperson and from its membership or not, as they desire, a Secretary and a Treasurer, or a Secretary-

Treasurer who shall continue to hold such office until their respective successors are elected.  

Section 3.2. Chairperson. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Authority and shall be 

authorized to sign all documents related to the Authority that require the signature of the Chairperson. The 

Chairperson shall be authorized to perform any duties as required by the laws of the Commonwealth of 

Virginia, by the laws of the County of King William ("the County''), or by the bylaws of the Authority and shall 

exercise such other powers and duties as shall be prescribed by the Board of Directors. 

Section 3.3. Vice-Chairperson. The Vice-Chairperson shall, in the absence or disability of the Chairperson, 

exercise the powers and perform the duties of the Chairperson. The Vice-Chairperson shall also generally 

assist the Chairperson and exercise such other powers and duties as shall be prescribed by the Board of 

Page 36 of 54



3 

Directors. 

Section 3.4. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all proceedings of the Board of Directors; the 

Secretary shall give all notices required under these bylaws; the Secretary shall affix the seal of the 

corporation to deeds, contract, and other writings requiring a seal; and the Secretary shall have charge of the 

minute books of the Authority. The Secretary of the Authority shall keep detailed minutes of all meetings and 

proceedings. All such minutes shall be open to public inspection at all times at the office of the Authority. The 

Secretary may or may not, as the Board of Directors shall desire, be a member of the Board.  

Section 3.5. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have the custody of all funds, securities, evidence of debt, and 

other personal property of the Authority and shall deposit the same in such bank or trust company as shall be 

designated by the Board of Directors; the Treasurer shall issue checks and pay out money and take receipts 

therefore; the Treasurer shall receive payments made to the Authority and give receipts therefore; the 

Treasurer shall make regular and full entries in the books of the Authority of all transactions and make full and 

accurate account of all money received and paid out on account of the Authority; and the Treasurer shall 

arrange to have same audited following the end of each fiscal year. Copies of each audit shall be furnished to 

the Board of Supervisors of King William County, Virginia, and all such other persons as the Board of 

Directors may deem appropriate and shall be open to public inspection at the office of the Authority. The fiscal 

year of the Authority shall begin on the first day of July and end on the last day of June next following. The 

Treasurer may or may not, as the Board of Directors shall desire, be a member of the Board. The Board of 

Directors may choose to elect a combined Secretary-Treasurer. 

Section 3.5.1. Checks, Notes, Drafts and Other Legal Documents. Checks, notes, drafts and other legal 

documents shall be signed by such directors or officers as specified in the Act, these bylaws, or as the Board 

of Directors may, from time to time, authorize. The signature of any such person may be by facsimile when 

authorized by the Board of Directors. 

Article IV Meetings 

Section 4.1. Annual Meeting. A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Authority should be held on the second 

Wednesday of January of each year at 7:00 p.m. in the conference room Board Room of the County 

Administration Building located at 180 Horse Landing Road, King William Court House, Virginia, unless 

otherwise stipulated in the meeting notice. The purpose of the annual meeting shall be the election of officers, 

the review of the affairs of the Authority for the preceding calendar year, and the transaction of any other 

business that might properly come before the Board of Directors. The Chairperson or the Board of Directors 

may modify the aforementioned annual meeting schedule due to inclement weather,  the business 

requirements of the Authority, the availability of directors to attend said meetings, the availability of meeting 

facilities, or other cause. 

Section 4.2. Regular Meetings. The regular meetings of the Board of Directors of the Authority should be 

held on the second Wednesday bimonthly (January, March, May, July, September, November) at 7:00 p.m. in 

Page 37 of 54



4 

the conference room Board Room of the County Administration Building located at 180 Horse Landing Road, 

King William Court House, Virginia, unless otherwise stipulated in the meeting notice. The Chairperson or the 

Board of Directors may modify the aforementioned regular meeting schedule due to inclement weather, the 

business requirements of the Authority, the availability of directors to attend said meetings,  the availability of 

meeting facilities, or other cause. 

Section 4.3. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the Chairperson 

or Secretary with approval of the Chairperson or the Vice- Chairperson if the Chairperson is not available. 

Section 4.4. Notice. Notice of the annual, regular, or special meetings shall be given to each director in 

writing at least five (5) calendar days prior to such meetings, provided, however, that all such notices may be 

waived by a majority of the Board of Directors. 

Section 4.5. Quorum. Four (4) members of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum of the Board 

for the purpose of conducting the Authority's business and exercising its powers and for all other 

purposes, except that no facilities owned by the Authority shall be leased or disposed of in a manner 

without a majority vote of all of the members of the Board of Directors. No vacancy in the membership of 

the Board shall impair the right of a quorum to exercise all of the powers and perform all of the duties of 

the Board. (Code of Virginia §15.2-4904E) 

Section 4.6. Voting. Except as otherwise required in these bylaws or by the Act, voting shall be by simple 

majority of those present at any duly constituted meeting of the Board of Directors. No director shall be allowed 

to vote by proxy at any meeting of the Board of Directors. 

Section 4.7. Agenda and Meeting Format. It shall be the responsibility of each member of the Board of 

Directors to notify the Chairperson or such person as may be designated, of any matter which such member 

wishes included on a meeting agenda at least seven (7) calendar days prior to said meeting. Any matter not 

disposed of at a meeting shall be included on the agenda of the next regular meeting. The format for all 

regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be as follows: 

A. Call to Order 

B. Roll Call 

C. Review and Adoption of Meeting Agenda 

D. Approval of Minutes 

E. Presentations 

F. Public Hearings 

G. Treasurer's Report 

H. Chairperson's Report 

I. Other Reports 

J. Unfinished Business 

K. New Business 

Page 38 of 54



5 

L. Public Comment 

M. Next Meeting Date 

N. Adjournment or Recess 

No matter not on the agenda shall be considered over the objection of one-half (1/2) or more of the members 

of the Board of Directors present. No matter not on the agenda shall be acted upon over the objection of any 

director present. 

For any special meeting, the business to be discussed shall be stated in the call for such special meeting. No 

other business shall be discussed or acted upon over the objection of any member of the Board of Directors 

present. 

Section 4.8. Public Hearings. Any advertised public hearing shall be considered a special order of 

business at the time, date, and place set for such hearing and shall supplant any matter on the agenda 

except for the approval of minutes. Generally, a person shall be allowed to speak for no more than five 

(5) minutes if speaking for a group, no more than three (3) minutes if speaking as an individual, and no 

more than one (1) time upon any particular question or matter. These time limitations shall apply to both 

public hearings and public comment periods during meetings. 

Section 4.9 Electronic Participation.  1. On or before the day of a meeting, a member of the Authority shall notify 

the chair that: 

a. Such member is unable to attend the meeting due to a temporary or permanent disability or other medical 

condition that prevents the member's physical attendance; or 

b. Such member is unable to attend the meeting due to a personal matter and identifies with specificity the nature of 

the personal matter. Participation by a member pursuant to this subdivision is limited each calendar year to two 

meetings. 

2. A quorum of the Board of Directors must be physically assembled at the primary or central meeting location. The 

Authority members present must approve the participation; however, the decision shall be based solely on 

compliance with the conditions contained in this section, without regard to the identity of the member or matters that 

will be considered or voted on during the meeting. The Secretary shall record in the minutes the specific nature of 

the emergency or personal matter, or the existence of a medical disability (but not the specific nature of such 

disability) and the remote location from which the absent member participated. The approval or disapproval of the 

absent member's remote participation shall be recorded in the meeting minutes and if participation is disapproved 

because such participation would violate this policy, the facts constituting such violation shall also be recorded. 

3. The Secretary shall make arrangements for the voice of the absent member to be heard by all persons in 

attendance at the meeting location. 

Per Code of Virginia §2.2-3708.2 and as of March 31, 2021: 

Page 39 of 54



6 

A) 1. The Authority may conduct any meeting wherein the public business is discussed or transacted through 

electronic communication means if, on or before the day of a meeting, an Authority Board member notifies 

the chair that: 

a. Such member is unable to attend the meeting due to (i) a temporary or permanent disability or other 

medical condition that prevents the member's physical attendance or (ii) a family member's medical 

condition that requires the member to provide care for such family member, thereby preventing the 

member's physical attendance; or 

b. Such member is unable to attend the meeting due to a personal matter and identifies with specificity 

the nature of the personal matter. Participation by a member pursuant to this subdivision b is limited 

each calendar year to two meetings or 25 percent of the meetings held per calendar year rounded up 

to the next whole number, whichever is greater. 

 2. If participation by a member through electronic communication means is approved, the Authority shall 

record in its minutes the remote location from which the member participated; however, the remote location 

need not be open to the public. If participation is approved pursuant to subdivision 1 a, the Authority shall 

also include in its minutes the fact that the member participated through electronic communication means 

due to (i) a temporary or permanent disability or other medical condition that prevented the member's 

physical attendance or (ii) a family member's medical condition that required the member to provide care 

for such family member, thereby preventing the member's physical attendance. If participation is approved 

pursuant to subdivision 1 b, the Authority shall also include in its minutes the specific nature of the personal 

matter cited by the member. 

  If a member's participation from a remote location pursuant to subdivision 1 b is disapproved because such 

participation would violate the policy adopted pursuant to subsection C, such disapproval shall be recorded 

in the minutes with specificity. 

 3. The Authority, or any joint meetings thereof, may meet by electronic communication means without a 

quorum of the public body physically assembled at one location when the Governor has declared a state of 

emergency in accordance with § 44-146.17 or the locality in which the public body is located has declared a 

local state of emergency pursuant to § 44-146.21, provided that (i) the catastrophic nature of the declared 

emergency makes it impracticable or unsafe to assemble a quorum in a single location and (ii) the purpose 

of the meeting is to provide for the continuity of operations of the public body or the discharge of its lawful 

purposes, duties, and responsibilities. The public body convening a meeting in accordance with this 

subdivision shall: 

a. Give public notice using the best available method given the nature of the emergency 

contemporaneously with the notice provided to Authority Board members; 

b. Make arrangements for public access to such meeting through electronic communication means; 

Page 40 of 54



7 

c. Provide the public with the opportunity to comment at meetings when public comment is customarily 

received; and 

d. Otherwise comply with the provisions of the Code of Virginia Chapter 37. 

  The nature of the emergency, the fact that the meeting was held by electronic communication means, and 

the type of electronic communication means by which the meeting was held shall be stated in the minutes. 

  The provisions of this subdivision 3 shall be applicable only for the duration of the emergency declared 

pursuant to § 44-146.17 or 44-146.21. 

C. Participation by an Authority Board member in a meeting through electronic communication means pursuant to 

subdivisions A 1 and 2 and subsection B shall be authorized only if the following conditions are met: 

 1. The Economic Development Authority Board of Directors has adopted a written policy allowing for and 

governing participation of its members by electronic communication means, including an approval process 

for such participation, subject to the express limitations imposed by this section. Once adopted, the policy 

shall be applied strictly and uniformly, without exception, to the entire membership and without regard to 

the identity of the member requesting remote participation or the matters that will be considered or voted on 

at the meeting; 

  The approval process for such participation by a member of the Economic Development Authority of King 

William County Board of Directors is by motion made immediately after the Call to Order and prior to Roll 

Call which has been properly seconded and voted on by all Authority Board members present. 

 2. A quorum of the public body is physically assembled at one primary or central meeting location; and 

 3. The public body makes arrangements for the voice of the remote participant to be heard by all persons at 

the primary or central meeting location. 

Section 4.10 Attendance. The Authority acknowledges that, pursuant to Section 15.2-4904 of the Code of Virginia 

of 1950, as amended, a member of the Board of Directors of the Authority may be removed from office by the King 

William County Board of Supervisors without limitation in the event that the member is absent from any three 

consecutive meetings of the Authority or is absent from any four meetings of the Authority within any 12-month 

period or upon unanimous vote of the Board of Supervisors. In any such event, a successor shall be appointed by 

the King William County Board of Supervisors for the unexpired portion of the term of the member who has been 

removed. [The Secretary shall report any such absences to the King William County Board of Supervisors.] [The 

Secretary shall provide an annual report at the end of each fiscal year to the King William County Board of 

Supervisors reporting any such absences for any current members.] 

Article V Committees 

Section 5.1. Executive Committee. The Board of Directors may designate, by resolution adopted by a 

Page 41 of 54



8 

majority of the directors, any two (2) or more of the directors to constitute an Executive Committee. The 

Executive Committee shall consider on behalf of the Board of Directors all matters brought to its attention 

when the Board is not in session during either a regular or special meeting. The Executive Committee shall act 

solely in an advisory capacity and shall not exercise any of the powers granted to the Authority or its officers 

pursuant to the Act or these bylaws. The Executive Committee shall report to the Board of Directors at the 

Board's next regularly scheduled meeting all matters considered by the Executive Committee. 

Section 5.2. Special Committees. The Board of Directors may appoint from time to time such other 

committees, consisting of no more than any two (2) of the directors, as it may deem necessary and expedient 

to promote the purposes of the Authority. Such committees shall be advisory only and shall not be empowered to 

act by or on behalf of the Authority. 

Article VI Prohibited Conduct 

Section 6.1. Staff Direction. No member of the Board of Directors shall direct the staff of the County of King 

William to take any action in the name of the Board of Directors or the Authority without the prior approval of 

the full Board of Directors. 

Section 6.2. Privileged Information. No member of the Board of Directors shall disclose privileged or confidential 

information to any individual, organization, corporation, or the like; however, all matters before the Authority may be 

discussed by members of the Board of Directors pursuant to the Virginia Freedom of Information Act. 

Article VII Rules of Order 

Section 7.1. Rules of Order. Roberts Rules of Order, newly revised or any subsequent edition thereof, shall govern 

all matters of procedure not specifically set forth in these bylaws or the Act. 

Section 7.2. Rules and Regulations. The Board of Directors may adopt, amend, and modify from time to time 

such rules, regulations, or forms which it may deem necessary or expedient for the conduct and management of the 

affairs of the Authority and which shall not be inconsistent with the Act. The Secretary of the Authority shall maintain 

current copies of all rules, regulations, and forms adopted by the Authority, which shall be available for public 

inspection at all times at the office of the Authority. 

Article VIII Amendments 

Section 8.1. Amendments. These bylaws may be amended by the Board of Directors at any meeting 

provided ten (10) calendar days prior written notice of the meeting, with a copy of the proposed amendment, 

shall have been provided each director. each director is given written notice at least ten (10) calendar days 

prior to the meeting which includes a copy of the proposed amendments. No amendment shall be adopted 

except by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the members of the Board of Directors present and voting. 

  

Page 42 of 54



9 

Article IX Adoption 

Section 9.1 Adoption. The Board of Directors of the Economic Development Authority of King William County 

adopted these amended bylaws on November 23, 1999. 

Section 9.2 Effective Date. These amended bylaws shall become effective on November 23, 1999 and shall 

remain in full force and effect until they are either amended or repealed by the Board of Directors of the Industrial 

Economic Development Authority of King William County. 

Section 9.3 Amendment. The Board of Directors of the Economic Development Authority of King William County 

adopted amendments to these bylaws on April 12, 2001. These amendments shall become effective on April 12, 

2001 and shall remain in full force and effect until they are either amended or repealed by the Board of Directors of 

the Economic Development Authority of King William County. 

Page 43 of 54



AGENDA ITEM 7.c.

Farmer's Market Update - Percy Ashcraft, County Administrator

Page 44 of 54



Page 45 of 54



Page 46 of 54



Page 47 of 54



Page 48 of 54



Page 49 of 54



Page 50 of 54



AGENDA ITEM 11.a.

Motion to Convene Closed Meeting in accordance with Section 2.2-3711 (A)(1) of the Code of Virginia to 
consider a personnel matter involving the appointment of individuals to Boards and Commissions, and in 
accordance with Section 2.2-3711 (A)(5) to discuss a prospective business or industry or expansion of an 

existing business or industry where no previous announcement has been made.

Page 51 of 54



June 2021 

CLOSED MEETING MOTIONS - EDA 

□ PERSONNEL – In accordance with Section 2.2-3711 (A)(1) of the Code of Virginia, I move that the Economic 
Development Authority Board convene in Closed Meeting to consider a personnel matter involving the (choose 
from below): 

 □ 1. appointment of individuals to Boards and Commissions. 

 □ 2. interview of a prospective candidate for employment.  

(or the) 

 □ 3. Employment □ 6. Promotion □ 9. Salary 

 □ 4. Assignment □ 7. Performance □ 10. Discipline 

 □ 5. Appointment □ 8. Demotion □ 11. Resignation 

 of a specific public officer / appointee / employee. 

□ PUBLIC PROPERTY – In accordance with Section 2.2-3711 (A)(3) of the Code of Virginia, I move that the 
Economic Development Authority Board convene in Closed Meeting regarding real property used for a public 
purpose, specifically pertaining to (choose from below): 

 □ 1. the acquisition of real property for a public purpose. 

 □ 2. the disposition of (name publicly held real property involved).  

 because discussion in an open meeting may adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of 
the Board. 

□ PROTECTION OF PRIVACY OF INDIVIDUALS – In accordance with Section 2.2-3711 (A)(4) of the Code of 
Virginia, I move that the Economic Development Authority Board convene in Closed Meeting regarding a 
personal matter not related to public business in order to protect the privacy of individuals. 

□ PROSPECTIVE BUSINESS OR INDUSTRY OR EXPANSIONS OF EXISTING BUSINESS OR INDUSTRY – 
In accordance with Section2.2-3711 (A)(5) of the Code of Virginia, I move that the Economic Development 
Authority Board convene in Closed Meeting to discuss a prospective business or industry or expansion of an 
existing business or industry where no previous announcement has been made. 

□ INVESTING OF PUBLIC FUNDS – In accordance with Section 2.2-3711 (A)(6) of the Code of Virginia, I move 
that the Economic Development Authority Board convene in Closed Meeting to discuss the investing of public 
funds where competition or bargaining is involved and where discussion in open session would adversely affect 
the financial interest of the County. 

Page 52 of 54



AGENDA ITEM 11.c.

Certification of Closed Meeting

Page 53 of 54



June 2021 

 

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING - EDA 

Mr. Chairman, I move that the King William County Economic Development Authority Board approve Standing 

Resolution 1 (SR-1) in accordance with Section 2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, certifying 

that the Closed Meeting was conducted in conformity with the requirements of the Virginia Freedom of Information 

Act. 

 

STANDING RESOLUTION – 1 (SR-1) 

A RESOLUTION TO CERTIFY COMPLIANCE WITH THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT  

REGARDING MEETING IN CLOSED MEETING  

WHEREAS, the King William County Economic Development Authority Board has convened a Closed 

Meeting on this date pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote, and in accordance with the provisions of the Virginia 

Freedom of Information Act; and,  

WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by the King William County 

Economic Development Authority Board that such Closed Meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia law, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the King William County Economic Development Authority Board on 

this ______ day of ________________, 2021, hereby certifies that, to the best of each member’s knowledge:  

1. Only public business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting requirements under the Freedom of 

Information Act were heard, discussed, or considered by the King William County Economic 

Development Authority Board in the Closed Meeting to which this certification resolution applies; and 

2. Only such public business matters as were identified in the motion convening the Closed Meeting were 

heard, discussed, or considered by the King William County Economic Development Authority Board.  

[ROLL CALL VOTE] 

Page 54 of 54


	1. Call to Order
	2. Roll Call
	3. Review and Adoption of Meeting Agenda
	4. Approval of Minutes
	a. April 13, 2022 Regular Meeting Draft Minutes
	Cover
	Minutes 04-13-2022 EDA Regular Meeting Minutes DRAFT

	b. April 23, 2022 Special Called Planning Meeting Dra
	Cover
	Minutes 04-23-2022 EDA Planning Meeting Minutes DRAFT


	5. Treasurer's Report
	6. Chairperson’s Report
	7. Unfinished Business
	a. Phase One Final Report from RKG - Kyle Talente, Pr
	b. By-Laws Update - Percy C. Ashcraft, County Adminis
	Cover
	EDA By-Laws 2022 Proposed Edits

	c. Farmer's Market Update - Percy Ashcraft, County Ad
	Cover
	KWPS facility_use

	d. Ag Education Project - Tracy M. Porter, Sr. - Regi

	8. New Business
	a. Appoint Business Roundtable - Percy C. Ashcraft, C

	9. Public Comment Period
	10. Next Meeting - June 8, 2022
	11. Closed Meeting
	a. Motion to Convene Closed Meeting in accordance wit
	Cover
	CLOSED MEETING MOTIONS-EDA-A1

	b. Motion to Reconvene in Open Session
	c. Certification of Closed Meeting
	Cover
	CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING-EDA

	d. Action on Closed Meeting (if necessary)

	12. Adjourn or Recess

